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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 March 2016 
Report of the Audit, Risk, Compliance, Social and Ethics Committee  

 

The Toyota Financial Services (South Africa) Limited (“TFSSA”) Audit, Risk, Compliance, Social and Ethics 
Committee is a sub-committee of the board of directors. It assists the Board through advising and making 
recommendations on financial reporting, risk management and systems of internal financial controls, external 
and internal audit functions and the statutory and regulatory compliance of the Company, but has no 
executive powers or responsibility.  

The committee assists the Board in monitoring the Company’s performance as a good and responsible 
corporate citizen, as well as monitoring the sustainable development practices.It is an advisory committee that 
plays an objective, independent role as overseer of all financial matters affecting the Board.   

The committee has adopted formal terms of reference through an approved charter, which has during the 
course of the current year, been reviewed and updated in line with regulatory changes.  

Composition of the committee  

The committee comprises three independent non-executive directors and the Chairman of the board does not 
serve on the audit committee. Throughout the current financial year, the committee comprised A Hedding - 
Chairman (an independent non executive member), N.D.B Orleyn (independent non executive member) and 
C.W.N Molope (independent non executive member).  

 
Meetings are attended by representatives of both the internal and external auditors and members of 
management on a standing invitation basis. The auditors have unfettered access to all records, assets and 
employees of the Company, as well as to the Chairman of the committee. 

Duties carried out by the committee 

In the conduct of its duties, the committee has performed the following statutory duties: 

• Reviewed the annual financial statements and recommended them for adoption by the Board; 

• Approved the internal audit charter and audit plans; 

• Received and reviewed reports from both the internal and external auditors, which included 
commentary on the effectiveness of the internal control environment, systems and processes and, 
where appropriate, made recommendations to the Board; 

• Ensured that the appointment of external auditors complied with the provisions of the South African 
Companies Act 71 of 2008 and other legislation relating to the appointment of external auditors; 

• Determined the fees to be paid to the external auditors and the auditor’s terms of engagement; 

• Determined the nature and extent of any non-audit services which may be provided by the external 
auditors; 

• Pre-approved any proposed terms of engagement for provision of non-audit services by the external 
auditors; 

• Received and dealt with any concerns or complaints, whether from within or outside the Company, 
relating to the accounting practices and internal audit of the Company, to the content or auditing of its 
financial statements, or any related matter; 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

Report of the Audit, Risk, Compliance, Social and Ethics Committee (continued)  

 

• reviewed the Ethics and Social requirements of the Company in terms of its regulatory and 
governance requirements, including health and public safety, environmental management, corporate 
social investment, consumer relationships, labour and employment and the promotion of equality and 
ethics management; 

• Made submissions to the Board on any matter concerning the Company’s accounting policies, 
financial controls, records and reporting; and 

• Performed other functions as determined by the Board. 

Re-election of committee members 
The re-election of the independent non-executive directors will be proposed to shareholders at the 
forthcoming annual general meeting.  The Chairperson will be appointed amongst the members of the 
committee. 

Risk Management 

Whilst the Board is ultimately responsible for the maintenance of an effective risk management process, the 
committee assists the Board in assessing the adequacy of the risk management process. The committee 
fulfils an oversight role regarding financial reporting risks, internal financial controls and fraud risk as it relates 
to the financial reporting and information. 

Legal and Regulatory compliance 

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the committee received updates on material legislation affecting the 
Company and ensured intervention where changes in legislation impacted on the business. 

External audit (Statutory functions and auditor independence) 

In execution of its duties during the past financial year, the committee has: 

• nominated Deloitte and Touche for appointment as auditor of the Company. Deloitte and Touche is a 
registered auditor who, in the opinion of the Audit, Risk, Compliance, Social and Ethics Committee is 
independent of the Company as set out in Section 94(8) of the Companies Act; 

• determined the fees to be paid to the auditor and the auditor’s terms of engagement;  
• ensured that the appointment of the auditor complies with the Companies Act and any other legislation 

relating to the appointment of auditors; and 
• determined the nature and extent of any non-audit services which the auditor may provide to the 

Company. 
 

As part of its review of auditor independence, the appointed auditors are required to satisfy the committee that 
the delivery of non-audit services does not compromise their independence.  

The committee has considered the independence of the external auditors throughout the year taking into 
account all other non-audit services performed and circumstances known to the committee. The committee is 
satisfied that the external auditors, Deloitte & Touche, are independent of the Company and management, 
and able to express an independent opinion on the Company’s annual financial statements.  

Internal audit 

Internal audit is a key independent assurance provider to the committee. The committee approves the annual 
internal plan. Internal audit is responsible for reporting the findings of their work against the agreed internal 
audit plan to the committee on a regular basis and has direct access to the committee through the Chairman.  

During the year, internal audit performed a review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal control environment. Based on the results, of these reviews, internal audit confirmed to the committee 
that nothing has emerged to indicate material control weaknesses in the risk management and internal control 
process, including internal financial controls. This written assessment by internal audit formed the basis for the 
committee’s recommendation to the board in this regard. 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

Report of the Audit, Risk, Compliance, Social and Ethics Committee (continued)  

 

Social and Ethics 

The objectives and responsibilities of the committee are recorded in its charter and are aligned with the 
committee’s statutory functions. In summary the committee has a duty to: 

• Monitor the social, economic, governance, employment and environmental activities of the Company; 
• Bring matters relating to these activities to the attention of the Board as appropriate; and 
• Report annually to shareholders on the matters within the scope of its responsibilities. 

The key issues addressed by the committee during the period included the following: 

• The plans implemented to ensure compliance with new labour legislation in South Africa that came in-
to effect during the reporting period, including ensuring equal pay for work of equal value, in further-
ance of the Company’s objectives of promoting equality, preventing discrimination and creating de-
cent employment; 

• Skills development programme for the Company that envisaged an increase in the expenditure to be 
incurred on training initiatives; 

• The employment equity plan for the Company for the period from 2014 to 2017 and the tracking of 
progress in relation thereto; 

• The progress being made with regards to the Company’s transformation and empowerment activities 
and initiatives, as measured by the new codes of good practice issued by the Department of Trade 
and Industry of the South African government to track Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment 
(B-BBEE); 

• The Internal Audit Report on the implementation of the various Compliance matters, relevant policies 
as well as the results of an employee survey which sought to obtain feedback from employees regard-
ing their impressions of the Company’s commitment to ethics. 

The Committee’s monitoring role also includes the monitoring of any relevant legislation, other legal require-
ments or prevailing Codes of Best Practice, specifically with regard to matters relating to social and economic 
development, good corporate citizenship, the environment, health and public safety, consumer relationships, 
as well as labour and employment. No material non-compliance with legislation and regulation, nor non-
adherence with the codes of best practice, relevant to the areas within the Committee’s mandate, was brought 
to its attention. 

All the directors and employees are required to maintain high standards to ensure that the Company's 
business is conducted in line with the principles as set out in TFSSA's Code of Conduct.  

The Company has a whistleblowers' policy and the committee received reports regarding the results of 
investigations of calls made to the independent whistleblowers' hotline facility. 

Social and Economic Development 

TFSSA seeks to make a significant contribution towards addressing challenges confronting South Africa, 
including poverty alleviation, job creation, education, welfare and healthcare. To this end, TFSSA participates 
in the Toyota Foundation and on an annual basis (2016: R3.9 million, 2015: R3.7 million), contributes funds to 
the Foundation to assist in carrying out their mandate. 

Labour 

TFSSA is committed to fair labour practices and freedom of association. The Company's policies are aimed at 
eliminating unfair discrimination and promoting equality in line with, inter alia, the South African Constitution, 
the Labour Relations Act, the Employment Equity Act and the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment 
Act, taking cognisance of the Universal Declaration on Human Rights, the Fundamental Human Rights 
Conventions of the International Labour Organization and the International Labour Organization Protocol. The 
Committee monitored and reviewed the implementation of labour policies, including: 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

Report of the Audit, Risk, Compliance, Social and Ethics Committee (continued)  

 

• attraction, retention and development of skills to support the Company's growth plan; 
• employment equity; 
• employee turnover; 
• learnerships and bursaries; and  
• educational training and development of its employees. 

 

Safety, Health and Environment 

TFSSA is committed to providing its employees with a safe and healthy work environment. The Committee 
monitored and reviewed the implementation of safety, health and wellness policies, including: 

• safety performance; and  
• occupational health and wellness. 

Disability 

During the year under review, we sensitised our employees towards disability awareness and encouraged 
them to voluntarily disclose their statuses, if any. We also engaged the services of PMI (Pty) Ltd to manage 
our Annual Disability Learnership. 

Review of the annual financial statements 

The Committee reviewed the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016, and is of the 
opinion that, in all material respects, they comply with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act and IFRS 
and their interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretation Committee.  

Combined Assurance 

The Combined Assurance Forum has the objective of overseeing the internal control assessment performed 
by internal audit, risk management and external audit. The forum comprises key stakeholders from 
management, auditors and is currently under the chairmanship of the General Manager: Corporate Affairs. 

The primary function of the Combined Assurance Forum is to ensure that the effectiveness of all material 
internal controls are assessed at least annually by either internal or external assurance providers or both.   

The Combined Assurance Forum meets on a quarterly basis. 

Regulatory Environment 

The committee monitors the ever changing regulatory and legislative compliance environment applicable to 
the Company’s operations. Progress and compliance is monitored through regular reporting at each 
committee meeting. 

Going Concern 

The committee has assessed the going concern status of the Company and has accordingly confirmed to the 
board that the Company will be a going concern for the foreseeable future. 

Meeting Attendance 

Membership and attendance at the meetings held during the year were as follows: 

 28 May 2015 03 September 
2015 

12 November 
2015 

23 February 
2016 

A Hedding     

N.D.B Orleyn     

C.W.N Molope X    
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

Directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2016  
 

 Nature of activities 

The Company provides retail and wholesale financing of Toyota, Lexus and Hino products for the Toyota 
South African dealer network and their customers, as well as used vehicles sold through the Toyota dealer 
network.  

 Results and dividends 
 

The Company experienced stable growth during the year ended 31 March 2016 compared to the prior year. 
Gross advances increased by R2.6 billion (2015: growth of R2.3 billion) to R30.6 billion (2015: R27.9 billion), 
equating to a 9.4% (2015: 8.9%) growth. The Company has reported an operating profit before taxation of 
R593 million (2015: R575 million).  The increase of 3.2% (2015: 3.6%) in finance penetration for the year was 
in the face of a reduction of total new car sales  from 110,691 units  (2015) to 103,466 units (2016), depressed 
economic conditions and a rising interest rate environment, affecting Toyota dealers, our retail customer base, 
as well as our finance costs. Overall growth was established through increasing our penetration of new 
vehicles financed through new market initiatives such as “Guaranteed Future Value” as well as focus on 
providing the right service and products to dealers and retail customers. This produced an increase in gross 
revenue of 12.7% (2015: 14.3%) from R3.2 billion to R3.6 billion. Growth in net profit before tax of 0.9% 
(2015: 10.8%) takes into account fair value derivative movements.  

As at 31 March 2016, the company has a total shareholders’ equity of R2.8 billion (2015: R2.5 billion).    

A dividend of R135 million (2015: R105 million) was paid to shareholders during the period under review 
based on the 2015 financial results.  

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2016 are set out in the statement of comprehensive 
income and the statement of financial position on pages 17 and 18 respectively.   

 Business Review 

 
Key Performance Indicators 
Fiscal Year To Date   2016 

Actual 
2015 

Actual 
Increase / 
(Decrease) 

Distributor vehicle sales1 Units 103,466 110,691 (6.5%) 
New vehicle contracts written in the year Units 30,373 28,939 5.0% 
Finance penetration 2 % 29.36% 26.14% 3.2% 
Used vehicle contracts written in the year Units 13,652 14,169 (3.6%) 
Total live contracts at year end Units 163,583 156,051 4.8% 
Impairment on loans and receivables 3 % 1.36% 1.10% 0.3% 
Total assets ZAR M's 30,628 27,912 9.7% 
Operating Profit ZAR M's 593 575 3.2% 
Profit before tax ZAR M's 592 587 0.9% 
Return on Assets 4 % 2.0% 2.1% (0.1%) 
Return on Equity 5 % 16.14% 17.25% (1.1%) 
Debt to Equity Ratio Times 10.1 10.4 (0.3) 
OPEX 6 % 1.47% 1.26% 0.2% 

1. ”Distributor Vehicles“ – total new Toyota and Lexus vehicles sold 
2. “Finance penetration” – percentage of new contracts written / distributor vehicles sales 
3. "Impairment on loans and receivables" – impairment against receivables / gross loans and receivables 
4. ”Return on Assets“ – profit before tax / total assets 
5. ”Return on Equity“ – profit after tax / equity 
6. ”OPEX“ – operating costs as a percentage of average gross finance and operating receivables 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

Directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2016 (continued) 
 

 Business Review (continued) 
  
 
Strategy and review of the business 

The Company’s vision is to, “Become the most admired motor manufacturer (sales) finance company in South 
Africa” by offering quality financial products and services aimed at supporting Toyota’s “Customer for life 
philosophy”, whilst producing acceptable levels of return for the shareholders. 

Despite a decrease in overall unit sales, TFSSA has benefited from increased penetration in the market as 
highlighted by the figures in the above table.   

The Company continues to apply the guiding principles of, ‘The Toyota Way’, and has been successful in 
reducing certain costs through the concept of ‘Kaizen’ (continuous improvement). 
 
Future outlook of the business 

The Company is in a sound financial and operational position and is confident that its business model will 
continue to deliver growth and maintain profitability.  This view is supported by the annual budget. 
 
Principal risks and uncertainties 

The Company has the following main areas of financial risk arising from its activities: 

Currency risk 

Where the Company issues foreign currency debt or borrows from banks in foreign currencies, the Company 
uses cross currency swaps to hedge the foreign currency exposure back into Rand. The Company did not 
have any foreign loans hedged by cross currency swaps at 31 March 2016 or 31 March 2015.  

Interest rate risk  

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk associated with fluctuations in market rates. This is managed 
through the monitoring of assets and liabilities, which are sensitive to interest rate fluctuations. The Company 
also applies interest rate risk management via the use of interest rate swap derivative financial instruments, 
where applicable. 

Credit Risk 

The Company is exposed to significant credit risks, which it manages by authorising credit limits based on 
client profiles and monitoring customer arrear and payment history. 

Fair values 

The fair value risk is managed by obtaining fair values from quoted market prices and discounted cash flow 
models. At 31 March 2016 the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables 
and trade and other payables approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturities of these assets 
and liabilities.  

Operational risk 

The Company’s objective with operational risk management is to embed the process into the day-to-day 
running of the business in a practical manner. This involves continual pro-active identification and 
understanding of risk factors and events that may impact business objectives, development of appropriate 
response strategies, and continual monitoring and reporting. This is done through the implementation of 
various risk management and governance mechanisms. 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

Directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2016 (continued) 
 

 

 Business Review (continued) 
  

Residual Value Exposure 

The Company manages residual value risk through a robust residual value setting process combined with 
quarterly asset impairment review meetings, referencing to the latest industry data.  The Company has a 
Residual Value Committee that reviews the exposure to possible residual value losses and reports any 
significant movement or exposures to the Board of Directors and the Audit, Risk, Compliance, Social and 
Ethics Committee. 

Liquidity Risk 

The Company manages liquidity risk by employing a number of funding strategies and utilising monitoring 
tools to ensure compliance with Toyota Group wide policy.  Diversification of funding sources via short-term 
and long-term capital markets and bank facilities are used to manage borrowing capacity. Capital market 
activity is further managed by the use of a guarantee under a Credit Support Agreement in place with Toyota 
Motor Finance Netherlands BV. 

 

 Going concern 
 
The Company expects to continue its current activities and the board has no reason to believe that the    
Company will not be a going concern in the year ahead. 
 
 

 Directors 

 
The following persons (South African unless otherwise stated) were directors of the Company to the date of 
this report: 
 
• M.G. Burger    CEO (Executive)  Appointed 17 April 2000 
• C.N. Hamman*   Chairman (Non Executive) Appointed 1 July 2013 
• C. de Kock    Non Executive   Appointed 28 June 2012 
• Dr J.J. van Zyl   Non Executive   Appointed 17 April 2000 
• A.J.H. Marshall   Non Executive   Appointed 01 April 2015 
• S. Sugimori  (Japanese) Executive    Appointed 1 January 2013 
• H. Muramoto (Japanese) Non Executive   Appointed 1 January 2013 
• A.W. Hedding   Independent Non Executive Appointed 21 March 2014 
• N.D.B. Orleyn   Independent Non Executive Appointed 21 March 2014 
• C.W.N. Molope   Independent Non Executive Appointed 21 March 2014 
• Y. Tomihara        (Japanese)  Non Executive     Appointed 23 February 2012 
• C.T. Ruben  (German) Alternate Non Executive  Appointed 16 September 2015 
• S. Nghona    Non Executive   Appointed 01 April 2015 

 
 
*Appointed as chairman effective 11 June 2015 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

Directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2016 (continued) 
 

 Directors (continued) 
 
The following individual resigned as directors of the Company during the year:  
 
• S.P. Ingersent    Non Executive  Resigned 01 April 2015  
• H. Watanabe  (Japanese) Non Executive  Resigned 02 November 2015  
• M.S.R. De Fonseca  (Portuguese) Alternate  Resigned 16 September 2015  
• C Zhungu     Non Executive  Resigned 01 April 2015  

 
H Watanabe was re-appointed as director on 01 April 2016. 

 

 Secretary 

 

The secretary of the Company is C. Low whose business and postal addresses are: 

 

Business      Postal  

Group Company Secretary’s Office   P O Box 650149 

4 Merchant Place     Benmore    

Corner Fredman Drive and Rivonia Road  2010 

Sandton       

2146 

Carnita.Low@firstrand.co.za 

 

 Shareholders 

 

The shareholders of the Company are: 

 

WesInvest Holdings Proprietary Limited*        33.3% 

Toyota SA Motors Proprietary Limited        33.3% 

Toyota Financial Services (UK) PLC         33.3% 

 

The Company is effectively held 66.7% by Toyota Motor Corporation, Japan. 

* WesInvest is a subsidiary of FirstRand Investment Holdings Limited 

 

 Share capital 

 

During the period under review the authorised and issued share capital remained unchanged 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

Directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2016 (continued) 
 

 Litigation 

 

Management is not aware of any pending or imminent litigation against Toyota Financial Services (South 
Africa) Limited. 

 

 Subsequent Events 
 
The Company issued commercial paper and a bond through Nedbank Limited on 28 April 2016 and 27 May 
2016, the instruments had nominal values of R400 million (1 year duration at 100 basis points above the 3 
month Jibar rate) and R350 million (3 year duration at 145 basis points above the 3 months Jibar rate) 
respectively. No other material transactions have occurred. 

 

 Directors emoluments 

 

Directors’ and prescribed officers’ emoluments 2016 (R’000) 1 

 Cash 
Package 

Retirement 
Contr. 

Performance 
related 

Share 
Options 

Housing Other 2 Total 

Directors  3,713 250 2,301 - 516 2,837 9,617 

Prescribed officers 5,860 622 1,329 - - 214 8,025 

 
Total 9,573 872 3,630 - 516 3,051 17,642 

 

Directors’ and prescribed officers’ emoluments 2015 (R’000) 1 

 Cash 
Package 

Retirement 
Contr. 

Performance 
related 

Share 
Options 

Housing Other 2 Total 

Directors  3,482 208 2,182 241 443 2,435 8,991 

Prescribed officers 4,983 536 1,569 - - 232 7,320 

Total 8,465 744 3,751 241 443 2,667 
 

16,311 
 
Notes 
All executive directors and prescribed officers have a notice period of one month.  
A prescribed officer is a person who exercises general executive control over management of the whole or a 
significant portion of the business and activities of Toyota Financial Services (South Africa) Limited. 
 

1. Refer to Note 27 for more information. 
2. Other allowances include expat allowances, travel and medical. 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 March 2016 (continued) 
 

 Auditors 

 

The independent auditors, Deloitte & Touche, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a 
resolution for their re-appointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting. 

 

 King III Corporate Governance 
 

Good corporate governance is an integral part of the Company’s sustainability. Adherence to the Standards 
and recommendations set out in the King III Report and other relevant laws and regulations are vital to 
achieving our strategic priorities. Corporate governance forms an overarching framework in which our 
business operates and we are committed to promoting good governance and ethics within all areas of our 
business. 

To achieve this, the Company continues to enhance and align its governance structures, policies and 
procedures to support its operating environment and strategy. 

The King III Code adopts an apply-or-explain principle where a reasonable explanation for non-compliance to 
a principle is required. Toyota Financial Services (South Africa) Limited has adopted the apply-or-explain 
principle for principles with which it has not complied and these are published on the Company’s website 
(www.toyota.co.za/toyota-finance/corporate-affairs). 

 

 JSE Listing Requirements 
 

As required by the Johannesburg Securities Exchange of South Africa (JSE) for companies that issue public 
debt instruments, the Company has made appropriate disclosure as per the requirements of the King III report 
on the Company website under the Corporate Governance Section.  
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

 
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

  Notes  2016 2015 
    R'000 R'000 
      

Interest and similar income  3a        3,405,497  3,042,118  

Fee and commission income  3b        194,142  153,166  

      
      
Total revenue    3,599,639 3,195,284 

      
Interest expense and similar charges  4        (1,863,412) (1,630,792) 

Fee and commission expense  5        (463,976) (457,404) 

      
      

Total interest fee expenses    (2,327,388) (2,088,196) 

      
      

Net interest  income    1,272,251 1,107,088 

      
Other expenses      
- Other operating expenses  6        (422,312) (345,906) 

- Depreciation  13  (23,648) (25,356) 

- Net impairment on financial assets  11  (233,197) (160,993) 

      
      
Total other expenses    (679,157) (532,255) 

      
Operating profit before Other (losses) / income    593,094 574,833 

      
Other (losses) / income  7        (1,548) 11,961 

      
      
Profit before taxation    591,546 586,794 

      
Taxation  8        (145,451) (164,302) 

      
      
Profit for the year    446,095 422,492 
 
Other Comprehensive Income 

    
- 

 
- 

 
Total Comprehensive Income 

    
446,095 

 
422,492 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

 
 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  
at 31 March 2016 

  
 
 
 

Notes 

  
 
 
 

2016 

 
 
 
 

2015 
    R'000 R'000 

Assets      
      

Non-current assets    21,453,075 19,767,083 
      

      
Property, plant and equipment  13       98,279 88,775 
Loans and receivables  11       21,250,067 19,588,439 
Deferred tax asset  14  104,729 89,869 

      
      
Current assets    9,175,224 8,145,635 

      
      

Trade and other receivables  10  19,951 36,518 
Loans and receivables  11       8,919,259 8,053,725 
Cash and bank balances  9        210,243 28,117 
Current tax asset  17  25,771 27,275 

      
      

Total Assets    30,628,299 27,912,718 
      

Equity and liabilities      
      

Capital and reserves    2,763,262 2,452,167 
      

      
Share capital  19       5 5 
Share premium  19       644,995 644,995 
Retained earnings    2,118,262 1,807,167 
      

      
Non-current liabilities    19,616,439 16,015,140 

      
      
Long Term borrowings  16  19,492,000 15,900,000 
Employee benefits liability  18  15,677 14,038 
Derivative financial instruments  12  13,083 11,535 
Deferred initiation fee  25  95,679 89,567 
      
Current liabilities    8,248,598 9,445,411 
      

      
Long term borrowings  16  6,666,440 7,837,256 
Trade and other payables  15       1,470,527 1,461,553 
Bank overdraft    9        83,310 120,237 
Deferred initiation fee  25  28,321 26,365 

      
      

Total Equity and Liabilities    30,628,299 27,912,718 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 
 

 Share  
Capital 

Share  
Premium 

Retained 
Earnings 

Total 

R’000 R'000 R'000 R'000 
  
Balance at 1 April 2014 5          644,995  1,489,675 2,134,675 

    .   
Dividends paid                    -                     -    (105,000) (105,000) 

     
Total Comprehensive 
Income 

                   -                     -    422,492 422,492 

     
     

Balance at 31 March 2015 5 644,995 1,807,167 2,452,167 
    .   

Dividends paid                    -                     -    (135,000) (135,000) 
     

Total Comprehensive   
Income 

                   -                     -    446,095 446,095 

     
     

Balance at 31 March 2016 5 644,995 2,118,262 2,763,262 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

  Notes  2016 2015 
    R'000 R'000 
      

Cash flows from operating activities    471,548 610,457 
      

      
Cash utilised by operations   24  (832,892) (508,965) 
Interest and similar income        3        3,405,497 3,042,118 
Interest and similar expense    (1,807,250)     (1,618,906) 
Dividends paid    (135,000) (105,000) 
Taxation paid  17  (158,807) (198,790) 

      
      

Cash flows from investing activities    (2,668,797) (2,331,417) 
      

      
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  13  (44,472) (27,242) 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 
equipment 

   13,515 17,452 

Increase in gross loans and receivables    (2,637,840) (2,321,627) 
      
      

Cash flows from financing activities    2,416,302 1,699,840 
      

      
Increase in Long term borrowings and derivative  
financial instruments 

   2,414,663 1,697,994 

Increase in Long term employee benefits  18  1,639 1,846 
      
      
      

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 

   219,053 (21,120) 

      
Net (overdraft)/ cash and cash equivalents at the 
beginning of the year 

   (92,120) (71,000) 

      
      

Net cash and cash equivalents(overdraft) at the 
end of the year 

 9  126,933 (92,120) 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
1. General information 
 

The Company is domiciled and incorporated in The Republic of South Africa under the Companies Act, No. 71 
of 2008. 

 

2. Accounting policies 
 

2.1 Basis of preparation 
 
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS), the Companies Act and the Johannesburg Securities Exchange (JSE) Listing 
Requirements using the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their 
fair value: derivative financial instruments and financial instruments classified at fair value through the profit or 
loss. These instruments include mark to market bonds and interest rate derivatives. 
 

2.2 Foreign currency translation 
 
The Company translates transactions in foreign currencies to South African Rand at spot rate on the 
transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to South 
African Rand using the rates of exchange ruling at the financial year-end. Translation differences on monetary 
assets and liabilities are included in the statement of comprehensive income for the year. 
 
2.3 Revenue recognition 
 
Revenue comprises the fair value received or receivable for services rendered and is recognised as 
follows: 

2.3.1 Interest income  
 

The Company recognises interest income in the statement of comprehensive income for all instruments 
measured at amortised cost. The effective interest method allocates the interest income over the average 
expected life of the financial instruments or portfolios of financial instruments.  The effective interest rate is the 
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the 
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or 
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates cash flows considering 
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider 
future credit losses.  

The calculation includes all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the 
effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. The Company suspends the 
accrual of contractual interest on non-performing advances.  However, in terms of IAS 39, interest income on 
impaired advances is thereafter recognised based on the original effective interest rate used to determine the 
discounted recoverable amount of the advance.   

This difference between the discounted and undiscounted recoverable amount is released to interest income 
over the expected collection period of the advance. 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)  
 
2. Accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.3.2 Fee and commission income 
 

The Company generally recognises fee and commission income on an accrual basis when the service is 
rendered. Certain fees and transaction costs that form an integral part of amortised cost financial instruments 
are capitalised and recognised as part of the effective yield of the financial instrument over the expected life of 
the financial instruments. These fees and transaction costs are recognised as part of the net interest income 
and not as non-interest revenue.  

 

2.4 Financial Instruments 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the Company’s statement of financial position when the 
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of that instrument. Purchases or sales of financial 
assets made in the ordinary course of business are recognised using settlement date accounting. Initial 
recognition is at fair value, including transaction costs. 
 
2.4.1 Derivative financial instruments 
 
Derivatives are used when considered necessary to manage interest rate and currency risk arising from 
underlying exposures within the course of normal business operations. The Company uses the following 
derivative financial instruments to reduce its underlying financial risks: 

• interest rate swaps.  
 
Derivative financial instruments are not entered into for trading in the near term or for speculative purposes.  
All derivatives are recognised on the statement of financial position. Derivative financial instruments are 
initially recorded at fair value, including transaction costs, and are re-measured to fair value at each 
subsequent reporting date. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised immediately in the 
statement of comprehensive income. 

Fair values are determined from quoted prices in active markets where available. Where there is no active 
market for an instrument, fair value is derived from prices for the derivative’s components using appropriate 
pricing or valuation models, including recent market transactions, and valuation techniques including 
discounted cash flow models and options pricing models, as appropriate.  

All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative. 
Where there is the legal ability and intention to settle net, then the derivative is classified as a net asset or 
liability as appropriate. 
 
2.4.2 Financial assets 
 
The Company’s principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents, loans and receivables, and trade 
and other receivables. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value and 
include highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject 
to an insignificant risk of change in value. Such investments are normally those with less than three months’ 
maturity from the date of acquisition, and include cash and bank and overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown 
separately on the statement of financial position, but included in cash and cash equivalents within the 
statement of cash flows. 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
  
2. Accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.4 Financial Instruments (continued) 
 
Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or variable payments that are not quoted 
in an active market. Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to their acquisition and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less any impairment.  

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset (or group of 
financial assets) and of allocating the interest income over the expected life of the asset. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows to the instrument’s initial carrying amount. 
Calculation of the effective interest rate takes into account fees receivable, that are an integral part of the 
instrument’s yield, commission income and transaction costs. All contractual terms of a financial instrument 
are considered when estimating future cash flows. 

Where a contract is renegotiated, or other changes occur that affect the expected term, the deferred income 
and deferred cost balances are released over the revised expected term. 

 
Trade and other receivables 
  

Other accounts receivable comprise of pre-payments and other receivables. These assets have been 
designated as originated loans and receivables and are measured at amortised cost. 

2.4.3 Financial liabilities 
 

The Company’s financial liabilities consists of accruals, product related credits and sundry creditors. All finan-
cial liabilities, other than liabilities designated at fair value are measured at amortised cost.  Financial liabilities 
designated at fair value are measured at fair value, and the resultant gains and losses are included in the 
statement of comprehensive income. 

Borrowings, including debt are recognised initially at fair value net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Amortised cost is adjusted 
for the amortisation of any transaction costs, premiums and discounts. The amortisation is recognised in in-
terest expense and similar charges using the effective interest method. 

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished – that is, when the obligation is discharged, 
cancelled or expires. 

 
2.4.4 Fair value estimation 
 
The fair value of publicly traded derivatives is based on quoted market values at the statement of financial 
position date. The fair value for non-traded derivatives is based on discounted cash-flow and option pricing 
models as appropriate.  

2.4.5 Amortised cost 
 

Amortised cost is determined using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate method is the 
rate that discounts estimated future cash flows over an instrument’s expected life to its net carrying value.  

2.4.6 Trade and other payables 
 
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value. 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
2. Accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.4 Financial Instruments (continued) 
 
2.4.7 Impairment of financial assets 
 
A financial asset, or portfolio of financial assets, is impaired and an impairment loss recognised if there is 
objective evidence that an event or events since initial recognition of the asset have adversely affected the 
amount or timing of future cash flows from the asset. The Company assesses financial assets for impairment 
on a monthly basis and at each statement of financial position date. 

The Company measures the amount of any loss as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset 
or group of assets and the present value of estimated future cash flows from the asset or group of assets 
discounted at the effective interest rate of the instrument at initial recognition. 

Impairment losses are assessed individually for financial assets that are individually significant and 
individually or collectively for assets that are not individually significant. In making a collective assessment of 
impairment, financial assets are grouped into portfolios on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics. 
Future cash flows from these portfolios are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows and historical 
loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. Historical loss experience is adjusted, on the 
basis of current observable data, to reflect the effects of current conditions not affecting the period of historical 
experience. 

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and the carrying amount of the 
financial asset or group of financial assets is reduced by establishing an allowance for impairment losses. 
If in a subsequent period the amount of the impairment loss reduces and the reduction can be ascribed to an 
event after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised loss is reversed by adjusting the 
allowance. Interest income continues to be recognised on the adjusted carrying amount, using the original 
effective interest rate, after an impairment loss has been recognised on a financial asset or group of financial 
assets. 

 

2.4.8 Offsetting financial instruments 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position 
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on 
a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 
 

2.5 Impairment of non-financial assets 

 

An impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Recoverable amount is defined as the lower of ‘value in use’ and ‘fair value less cost to sell’. At each reporting 
date the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. These are included in other operating 
expenses in the statement of comprehensive income. 

Impairment loss will be reversed where the recoverable amount of the non-financial asset increases to the 
revised estimate of the recoverable amount but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset. The 
reversal of the impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

Property, plant and equipment is subject to an impairment review if there are events or changes in 
circumstance which indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.  
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
2. Accounting policies (continued) 

 
2.6 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
 

Items of property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets, are carried at cost less any accumulated 
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment 
comprises major components having different useful lives, they are accounted for separately.  The assets’ 
residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if necessary, at each statement of financial 
position date.  Gains and losses on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment are determined by 
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in operating expenses in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 

Depreciation and amortisation is charged to the statement of comprehensive income on the straight-line 
method so as to write off the depreciable amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset over 
the estimated useful life of the assets as follows: 
 
Office furniture and equipment : 4-10 years 
Motor vehicles   : 5 years 
Software   : 3 years  
 
2.7 Finance leases, operating leases, and rentals  
 
2.7.1 Leases 

Contracts to lease assets are classified as finance leases if they transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the asset to the customer. All other contracts to lease assets are classified as 
operating leases or rentals. 

Finance leases include amounts advanced to customers related to assets purchased under conditional sales 
agreements (retail finance contracts) and assets leased under finance lease. Finance lease receivables are 
stated in the statement of financial position at the amount of the net investment in the lease, being the 
minimum lease payments and any unguaranteed residual value discounted at the interest rate implicit in the 
lease. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to give a constant periodic rate of return 
before tax on the net investment.  

Operating leases relate predominantly to the occupational lease of the TFSSA premises at 15 Spartan 
Crescent, Marlboro for a rental period of 5 years with an escalation clause that approximates CPIX as defined. 
Operating leases on are recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term  

 

2.8 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
 

Provisions are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle a 
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. 

A provision is used only for expenditure for which the provision was originally recognised. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation at the statement of financial position date, which is the amount that the Company would rationally 
pay to settle the obligation at the statement of financial position date or to transfer it to a third party at that 
time. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed, where an 
inflow of economic benefits is probable. 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
2. Accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.9 Current and deferred income tax 

 
(a) Current income tax 

The charge for current tax is based on the results for the period as adjusted for items that are non-taxable or 
disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement 
of financial position date. 

 
(b) Deferred income tax 

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the statement of financial position liability method, on temporary 
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the annual 
financial statements. The deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an 
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects 
neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss.  

Deferred income tax is also determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted by the statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred 
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available 
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities as both relate to the South African Revenue Service (SARS). 

 

2.10 Employment benefits  
 
(a) Short-term employee benefits 

The Company does not require any actuarial assumptions in measuring its short-term employee benefit 
obligations. These obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis. Such costs are recognised when the 
related services are rendered. 

 
(b) Post-employment benefits 

The Company provides employee retirement benefits in the form of defined contribution plans. 

Under the defined contribution plan, the Company recognises the contribution paid to a fund when an 
employee has rendered service in exchange for those contributions. 

The Company operates post-employment medical aid schemes (defined benefit), with membership limited to 
employees who were retired and / or in the employment of WesBank at specified dates and transferred to 
TFSSA. For past service, the company recognises and provides for the actuarially determined present value 
of post-employment medical aid employer contributions using the projected unit credit method. Independent 
qualified actuaries carry out annual valuations of these obligations. Unrecognised actuarial gains or losses are 
accounted for over a period not exceeding the remaining working life of active employees. Actuarial gains or 
losses in respect of vested benefits of retired employees are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive 
Income. 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
2. Accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.11 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the statement 
of financial position date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below. 

Credit impairment losses and advances  

The Company assesses its credit portfolio for impairment on a monthly basis. In determining whether an 
impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of comprehensive income, the Company makes 
judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future 
cash flows from a portfolio of loans. For the purpose of these judgements the credit portfolio is split into two 
parts: Performing loans and Non-performing loans. 

• Performing Loans 

(1) The first part consists of the portion of the performing portfolio where there is objective evidence of the 
occurrence of an impairment event. In the portfolio, the account status, namely arrears versus non-arrears 
status is taken as a primary indicator of an impairment event. A portfolio impairment calculation is made to 
reflect the decrease in estimated future cash flows for this sub segment of the performing portfolio. The 
decrease in future cash flows is primarily estimated based on an analysis of historical loss and recovery rates 
for comparable sub segments of the portfolio. 

(2) The second part consists of the portion of the performing portfolio where an incurred impairment event is 
inherent in a portfolio of performing advances, but has not been specifically identified. An incurred-but-not-
reported (IBNR) impairment is calculated on this sub segment of the portfolio, based on historical analysis of 
loss ratios, roll-rates from performing status into non-performing status and similar risk indicators over the 
estimated loss emergence period. 

Estimates of roll-rates, loss ratios and similar risk indicators are based on analysis of internal and, where 
appropriate, external data. Estimates of the loss emergence period are made in the context of the nature and 
frequency of credit assessments performed, availability and frequency of updated data regarding customer 
creditworthiness and similar factors. 

• Non-performing loans  

These loans are impaired based on their classification status and specific assessment of the likelihood to 
repay.  Management’s estimates of future cash flows on individually impaired loans are based on internal 
historical loss experience. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing 
of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss 
experience. 

 

2.12 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 
 

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under 
the circumstances. 
(a) Impairment losses on loans, leases and receivables 

The Company reviews its loan and lease portfolios to assess impairment on a monthly basis. In determining 
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of comprehensive income, the Company 
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease  
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
2. Accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.12 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued) 
 

in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans and leases before the decrease can be identified 
with an individual loan or lease in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that 
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group, or national or local 
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on such assets. Management uses estimates based on 
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment 
similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used 
for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any 
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience. 

(b) Fair value of derivatives 

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets are determined by using 
valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques or models are used to determine fair values, they are 
validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel independent of the area that created them. All 
models are certified before they are used, and models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual data 
and comparative market prices. To the extent practical, models use only observable data; however, areas 
such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations require management to make 
estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect reported fair value of financial 
instruments. 

c) Vehicle residual value 

The Company manages residual value risk through a robust residual value setting process combined with 
quarterly asset impairment reviews, referencing to industry data available and taking the useful life of the 
asset into consideration.  Deferred tax may arise on temporary differences between the tax base and the 
carrying amount of the asset.    

(d) Post retirement benefits 

The principal actuarial assumptions used to determine the present value of the liability for accounting 
purposes is detailed in note 18.1. 

 

2.13 Segment Reporting 
 

An operating segment is a component of the group engaged in business activities, whose operating results 
are reviewed regularly by management in order to make decisions about resources allocated to segments and 
assessing segment performance. 

The chief operational decision-makers, responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the 
operating segments, are the executive management committee that makes strategic decisions.  

Decision making in relation to resource allocation or performance evaluation is performed at Company level. 
TFSSA operates its business within the Republic of South Africa and deems all revenue and expenses to be 
subject to the economic conditions.  

The company has therefore assessed to have one reportable segment as reported on its annual financial 
statements. 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
2. Accounting policies (continued) 

 

2.14 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards 
 

These standards have not been early adopted: 

IFRS 7: Financial instruments: Disclosures (effective date 1 January 2016) 

IFRS 7 requires entities to provide disclosures in their financial statements that enable users to evaluate the 
significance of financial instruments for the entity’s financial position and performance.  
The entity is also required to disclose the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments to which 
the entity is exposed during the period and at the end of the reporting period. 
 
These disclosures provide an overview of the entity’s use of financial instruments and the exposures to risks 
they create and how those risks are managed. The amendments to IFRS 7 apply when an entity first applies 
the requirements of IFRS 9 and so apply to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. 
 
Instead of requiring restatement of comparative financial statements, entities are either permitted or required 
to provide modified disclosures on transition from IAS 39 to IFRS 9 on the basis of the entity's date of 
adoption and if the entity chooses to restate prior periods. 
 
The Company is in the process of assessing the impact that IFRS 7 will have on the Company’s annual finan-
cial statements. Until the process has been completed, the Company is unable to determine the significance 
of the impact. 
 

IFRS 9: Financial instruments (effective date 1 January 2018) 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments was issued on 24 July 2014. The final version of the standard incorporates 
amendments to the classification and measurement guidance as well as accounting requirements for 
impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost. These elements of the final standard are 
discussed in detail below: 

• The classification and measurement of financial instruments under IFRS 9 is based on both the busi-
ness model and the rationale for holding the instruments as well as the contractual characteristics of 
the instruments. 

• Impairments in terms of IFRS 9 will be determined based on an expected loss model that considers 
the significant changes to the asset’s credit risk and the expected loss that will arise in the event of 
default. 

• IFRS 9 allows financial liabilities not held for trading to be measured at either amortised cost or fair 
value. If fair value is elected then changes in the fair value as a result of changes in own credit risk 
should be recognised in other comprehensive income. 
 

The Company has initiated a process to determine the impact of IFRS 9 on the Company’s annual financial 
statements. Until the process has been completed, the Company is unable to quantify the expected impact. 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)  
 
2. Accounting policies (continued) 

 

2.14 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (continued) 
 

IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective date: 1 January 2017) 

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers provides a single, principle based model to be applied to all 
contracts with customers. The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity will recognise revenue to depict the 
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the 
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 
 
The new standard will also provide guidance for transactions that were not previously comprehensively ad-
dressed and improve guidance for multiple element arrangements. The standard also introduces enhanced 
disclosures about revenue. 
 
The Company is in the process of assessing the impact that IFRS 15 will have on the Company’s annual fi-
nancial statements. Until the process has been completed, the Company is unable to determine the signifi-
cance of the impact. 
 

IFRS 16: Leases (effective date: 1 January 2019) 

IFRS 16 Leases was issued in January 2016. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measure-
ment, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract, i.e. the client (‘lessee’) and the sup-
plier (‘lessor’). IFRS 16 replaces the previous lease standard, IAS 17 Leases (IAS 17), and related interpreta-
tions. 
 
The Company as lessee 
 
IFRS 16 eliminates the classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases as is required by 
IAS 17 and, instead, introduces a single-lessee accounting model. Applying that model, a lessee is required to 
recognise: 

• assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is 
of low value, and 

• depreciation of lease assets separately from interest on lease liabilities in the income statement. 
 
The Company as lessor 
 
IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor con-
tinues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases 
differently. The most significant effect of the new requirements in IFRS 16 will be an increase in lease assets 
and financial liabilities.  
 
The Company is in the process of assessing the impact that IFRS 16 will have on the Company’s annual fi-
nancial statements. Until the process has been completed, the Company is unable to determine the signifi-
cance of the impact. 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

3. Total revenue         

a. Interest and similar income 

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 
Finance charges earned:   
 - Retail lease 96,706 89,504 
 - Retail finance 3,124,162 2,777,404 
 - Wholesale loans 116,507 112,966 

   
Documentation fees    
 - Retail lease 280 389 
 - Retail finance 67,842 61,855 

   
   

Total interest and similar income 3,405,497 3,042,118 
 

b. Fee and commission income 

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 

   
Loans and receivables fee income 129,145 122,227 
Insurance sales commission income 64,997 30,939 

   
   

Total fee and commission income 194,142 153,166 
 
4. Interest expense  

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 
Interest on financial liabilities by class:  
- Interest expense - Bank loans * 1,506,628 1,314,941 
- Interest expense - Interest related fees * 10,531 9,610 
- Interest expense - Domestic Medium Term Note * 282,829 273,432 
- Interest expense - Commercial paper * 61,199 29,900 
- Interest expense - Derivative financial instruments  ** 2,225 2,909 

   
   

Total interest on financial liabilities 1,863,412 1,630,792 
 

* Denotes interest on financial liabilities held at amortised cost 
** Denotes interest on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 31 of 61 

Toyota Financial Services (South Africa) Limited  

  



TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

5. Fee and commission expense 

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 

Commission and incentive expense   
 - Retail lease  41,855 56,079 
 - Retail finance 416,833 391,732 

   
   

Total commission and incentive expense 458,688 447,811 
   
Management fee paid to WesBank: Interest related   
 - Retail lease  1,802 3,411 
 - Retail finance 3,486 6,182 

   
   

Total interest related fee expense 5,288 9,593 
   

Total fee and commission expense 463,976 457,404 
 

6. Other operating expenses 

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 

   
Audit fee 3,265  3,259  
Management fee paid to WesBank: Operating expense related  219,775  186,065  
Operating lease rentals 4,177  3,858  
Operating expenses 56,546  49,649  
Professional fees 12,580  5,059  
Staff and pension costs 125,969  98,016  

   
   

Total other expenses 422,312 345,906 
 

 

7. Other (losses) / income 

Other (losses) / income include fair value movements. 

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss   

 - Fair value interest rate swap (1,548) 11,961 
   

   
Total Other (losses) / income (1,548) 11,961 
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(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

8. Taxation 

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 
South African normal taxation:   
Current taxation (160,311) (182,654) 
Current year (176,822) (182,654) 
Prior year-overprovision 16,511 - 
Deferred taxation 14,860 18,352 
Current year 26,637 18,352 
Prior year-overprovision (11,777) - 

   
   

Tax charge to the statement of comprehensive income (145,451) (164,302) 
   

Tax charge to the statement of comprehensive income can be 
reconciled as follows: 

  

Profit before taxation 591,546 586,794 
   

Taxation at statutory tax rate of 28% (165,633) (164,302) 
Permanent differences 15,448 - 
Interest  576 - 
Insurance Dividends (16,024) - 
Prior year adjustment 4,734 - 
   
Tax charge to the statement of comprehensive income (145,451) (164,302) 

   
Effective tax rate for the year 24.59% 28.00% 

 

9. Cash and cash equivalents 

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 

   

Cash and bank balances 210,243 28,117 
Bank overdraft         (83,310) (120,237) 

   
   

Total cash and cash equivalents (126,933) (92,120) 
 

 

10. Trade and other receivables 

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 

   

Deferred deal loading costs 12,553 14,464 
Other receivables 7,398 22,054 

   
   

Total trade and other receivables 19,951 36,518 
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
11. Loans and receivables 

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 

Gross loans and retail lease receivable   
– Retail leases 725,173 572,899 
– Retail finance 27,234,020 25,080,194 
– Wholesale loans 2,627,081 2,295,341 

   
   

Total loans and retail lease receivables 30,586,274 27,948,434 
   
Impairments against receivables   
– Retail leases (7,116) (8,320) 
– Retail finance (402,452) (290,421) 
– Wholesale loans (7,381) (7,529) 

   
   

 (416,949) (306,270) 
   
Net loans and receivables   
– Retail leases 718,057 564,579 
– Retail finance 26,831,568 24,789,773 
– Wholesale loans 2,619,701 2,287,812 
   
   
Loans and retail lease receivables - after impairment 30,169,326 27,642,164 

   
Maturity analysis   
– Due within one year  8,919,259 8,053,725 
– Due between two and five years 19,640,358 18,251,287 
– Due after five years 1,609,709 1,337,152 

   
 30,169,326 27,642,164 

Reconciliation of impairment: 

The average term of loans and receivables entered into is 66 months (2015: 66 months). Contractual interest 
rates vary from a fixed interest rate for a set period to a variable interest rate. The weighted average interest 
rate in respect of loans and receivables at 31 March 2016 was 12.49% (2015: 12.54%). Refer to note 20 for 
the split between performing loans and non-performing loans. 

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 

   

Opening balance 306,270 248,012 
Impairment charge in statement of comprehensive income1 279,828 210,504 
Bad Debts Recovered1 (46,631) (49,511) 
Net write-offs of loans and receivables (122,518) (102,735) 
   

   
Closing balance 416,949 306,270 

 
1 Net impairment on financial assets per Statement of Comprehensive Income 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

12. Derivative financial instruments 

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 

Held for trading:   

   
– Rand Merchant Bank (13,083) (11,535) 

   
   

 (13,083) (11,535) 
 

This represents the fair values on the interest rate swaps between Rand Merchant Bank (a division of 
FirstRand Bank Ltd) and the Company. The Company entered into two 5 year fixed for floating swaps, with a 
nominal value of R200 million each to manage interest rate risk. These swaps were matched to specific 
underlying borrowings.  

 

13. Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 

 Office 
Furniture & 
Equipment 

Motor 
Vehicles 

Computer 
Software 

Total 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 
Year ended 31 March 2016     
Opening net book value 1,849 83,914 3,012 88,775 
Additions 618 42,610 1,244 44,472 
Disposals - (11,320) - (11,320) 
Depreciation (849) (21,166)  (1,632) (23,648) 
     
Closing net book value 1,618 94,038 2,623 98,279 
     

     
At 31 March 2016  

 
   

Cost  5,360 140,354 10,369 155,083 
Accumulated depreciation (3,742) (46,316) (7,746) (57,804) 
     
Net book value 1,618 94,038 2,623 98,279 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

13. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (continued) 

 

 Office 
Furniture & 
Equipment 

Motor 
Vehicles 

Computer 
Software 

Total 

Year ended 31 March 2015 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 
Opening net book value 1,130 99,125 3,053 103,308 
Additions 805 24,173 2,264 27,242 
Disposals - (16,419) - (16,419) 
Depreciation (86) (22,965) (2,305) (25,356) 

 
Closing net book value 1,849 83,914 3,012 88,775 
 
At 31 March 2015 
Cost  

 
 

4,741 

 
 

123,082 

 
 

9,126 

 
 

136,948 
Accumulated depreciation (2,892) (39,168) (6,114) (48,173) 
     
Net book value 1,849 83,914 3,012 88,775 
 

Motor vehicles and office furniture and equipment are held at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment. Computer software is held cost less amortisation and impairment. 

 

14. Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 

Tax effect of temporary differences: 
 
 

Opening   
Balance 

Movement Closing       
Balance 

R'000 R'000 R'000 
2016:    
Leases and wear and tear  (26,256) (1,245) (27,501) 
Impairments (bad debts) 76,772 10,703 87,475 
Deferred origination costs (4,050) 535 (3,515) 
Interest rate swap fair value 3,230 433 3,663 
Provision for leave pay 3,781 1,716 5,497 
Deferred initiation fees 32,461 2,259 34,720 
Deferred employee benefit liability 3,931 459 4,390 

    
 89,869 14,860 104,729 
    
 
2015:    
Leases and wear and tear  (30,795) 4,539 (26,256) 
Impairments (bad debts) 61,275 15,497 76,772 
Deferred origination costs (4,245) 195 (4,050) 
Interest rate swap fair value 6,591 (3,361) 3,230 
Provision for leave pay 5,323 (1,542) 3,781 
Deferred initiation fees 29,954 2,507 32,461 
Deferred employee benefit liability 3,414 517 3,931 
    
 71,517 18,352 89,869 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

 

15. Trade and other payables 

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 

   
Sundry creditors (352,814) (278,498) 
Toyota South Africa Motors Proprietary Limited  (1,094,396) (1,176,344) 
Accrued expenses (23,069) (5,725) 
VAT payable (248) (986) 
   

   
Total trade and other payables (1,470,527) (1,461,553) 

 

Trade and other payables are all due within one year, and therefore reported as current liabilities. The total 
trade and other payables are held at carrying value. 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

16. Borrowings – total amount split by maturity 

 
 
 

< 1 Year > 1 Year Total
R'000s R'000s R'000s

   - Bank borrowings
BOTM-London Branch Fixed 400 000             2 600 000           3 000 000           

Variable 200 000             200 000             400 000             
600 000             2 800 000           3 400 000           

BTMU(Europe) Fixed -                    4 900 000           4 900 000           

SMBC Fixed 1 100 000           800 000             1 900 000           
Variable 400 000             4 100 000           4 500 000           

1 500 000           4 900 000           6 400 000           

TMFNL Variable 200 000             500 000             700 000             

Indwa Variable 200 000             200 000             400 000             

CITI Variable 250 000             250 000             

Nedbank Variable 100 000             100 000             

JP Morgan Chase Variable 200 000             200 000             

Sumitomo Trust Variable 200 000             600 000             800 000             

Mizuho Fixed 300 000             400 000             700 000             
Variable 500 000             300 000             800 000             

800 000             700 000             1 500 000           

Mizuho-Ned Fixed 800 000             800 000             
Variable 600 000             600 000             

-                    1 400 000           1 400 000           

JBIC Fixed -                    400 000             400 000             

Mitsubishi Variable -                    900 000             900 000             

FRB Variable 558 440             -                    558 440             

 - Domestic bond Variable 1 258 000           2 192 000           3 450 000           
 -   

 - Commercial paper Variable 800 000             -                    800 000             

Borrowings - total 6 666 440           19 492 000         26 158 440         

Fixed / Variable31-Mar-16
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

16. Borrowings – total amount split by maturity (continued) 

  

< 1 Year > 1 Year Total
R'000s R'000s R'000s

   - Bank borrowings
BOTM-London Branch Fixed 2 800 000           1 600 000           4 400 000           

Variable -                    400 000             400 000             
2 800 000           2 000 000           4 800 000           

BTMU(Europe) Fixed -                    2 500 000           2 500 000           
Variable -                    -                     -   

-                    2 500 000           2 500 000           

SMBC Fixed 700 000             1 600 000           2 300 000           
Variable 200 000             3 400 000           3 600 000           

900 000             5 000 000           5 900 000           

INKOTHA Variable 70 000               -                    70 000 000         

TMFNL Variable -                    200 000             200 000             

Indwa Variable 500 000             400 000             900 000             

CITI Variable 400 000             -                    400 000             

Nedbank Variable 100 000             -                    100 000             

JP Morgan Chase Variable -                    200 000             200 000             

Sumitomo Trust Variable 400 000             200 000             600 000             

MIZUHO Fixed -                    700 000             700 000             
Variable 500 000             800 000             1 300 000           

500 000             1 500 000           2 000 000           

MIZUHO-Ned Variable 400 000             400 000             

JBIC Fixed -                    400 000             400 000             

Mitsubishi Variable -                    300 000             300 000             

FRB Variable 902 256             -                    902 256             

 - Domestic bond Variable 260 000             2 800 000           3 060 000           
 -   

 - Commercial paper Variable 1 005 000           -                    1 005 000           

Borrowings - total 7 837 256           15 900 000         23 737 256         

31-Mar-15 Fixed / Linked
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

16. Borrowings – total amount split by maturity (continued) 

The Domestic Bonds were issued, under the established R7 billion Domestic Medium Term Note Programme 
(“the programme”). The security for the programme is provided by Toyota Motor Finance Netherlands BV in 
the form of a guarantee under a credit support structure from Toyota Motor Corporation. The Company elects 
to value these notes at amortised cost in order to minimise income statement volatility. 

Commercial paper is issued under the same Domestic Medium Term Note Programme as above, and is 
issued on a zero-coupon basis and held at amortised cost. 

The loans from Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi UFJ Limited ("BOTM-London Branch"), BTMU Europe, Mizuho 
Corporate Bank Limited ("Mizuho"), Mizuho Bank Nederland N.V ("Mizuho Ned"), iNkotha Investments Limited 
(“INKOTHA”), Indwa Investments Limited (“Indwa”), Citibank (“CITIBANK”), Nedbank Limited (“Nedbank”), 
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited (“Sumitomo Trust”),JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. (“JP Morgan Chase”), 
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation Europe Limited ("SMBC"), FirstRand Bank Limited (“FRB”), Toyota 
Motor Finance (Netherland) BV (“TMFNL”), Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation (“Mitsubishi Trust”) 
and  Japan Bank for International Cooperation (“JBIC”) are all Rand denominated, unsecured and payable on 
maturity date. Bank borrowings are held at amortised cost. 

 

17. Current tax asset and taxation paid 

     2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 

   
Opening (Receivable) / Liability (27,275) (11,139) 
Current tax charge 160,311 182,654 
Current tax receivable 25,771 27,275 

   
   

Taxation paid 158,807 198,790 
 

Current tax receivables are all due within one year. 

18. Retirement benefit obligations 

 

18.1 Defined contribution plan 

All employees contribute to the Alexander Forbes Retirement Fund which is governed by the Pension Fund 
Act of South Africa, 1956. These are defined contribution funds.  

Pension contributions of R7.48 million (2015: R6.11 million) were made during the year and are included in 
staff costs. 

 

18.2 Defined benefit obligations 

     2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 

   
Present Value of defined medical benefit liability             (15,677)             (14,038) 
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(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
18.2 Defined benefit obligations (Continued) 

 

Regulatory Framework 

The plan is governed by Local regulations and practice in South Africa. The medical plan is regulated by the 
Registrar of the Council or Medical Schemes. 

 

Sensitivity Analysis 

Discount rate 1%  decrease 
 R000's 

Valuation  basis 
R000's 

1%  increase 
   R000's 

Employer's accrued liability 18,953 15,677 13,130 
Employer's service and interest cost 2,687 2,213 1,845 
Health care cost inflation 1%  decrease 

 R000's 
Valuation  basis 

R000's 
1%  increase 

   R000's 

Employer's accrued liability 13,122 15,677 18,904 
Employer's service and interest cost 1,843 2,213 2,680 
Mortality PA 1901-3 R000's Valuation  basis 

R000's 
PA [901-1] R000's 

 

Employer's accrued  liability 16,157 15,677 15,201 
Employer's service and interest cost 2,280 2,213 2,146 

Average retirement age ARA-1 R000's Valuation  basis 
R000's 

ARA+1 R000's 

Employer's accrued  liability 16,379 15,677 15,050 
Employer's service and interest cost 2,315 2,213 2,121 
 

 

Significant Assumptions 

The liability derived by this valuation is dependent on the following assumptions; 

• Discount rate 
• Health care cost inflation 
• Mortality 
• Average retirement age 

Any changes in the above assumptions will result in changes in the total liability of the plan. The principal 
actuarial assumptions used by Momentum Specialised Solutions as at 31 March 2016 to determine the 
present value of liability for accounting purposes were: 
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
18.2 Defined benefit obligations (Continued) 

 

2016 

Discount rate Nominal Government Bond Yield Curve rounded to nearest 
0.25% 

10.25
% 

CPI inflation Difference between nominal and index linked bond yield 
curves plus 0.5% inflation risk premium. 

7.75% 

Medical Inflation Inflation rate plus 1.5% 9.25% 

 
2015 

  

Discount rate Nominal Government Bond Yield Curve rounded to nearest 
0.25% 

8.00% 

CPI inflation Difference between nominal and index linked bond yield 
curves plus 0.5% inflation risk premium. 

5.50% 

Medical Inflation Inflation rate plus 1.5% 7.00% 

 Contractual liability 
R’ 000 

Liability as at 31 March 2015 14,038 

Interest cost 1,120 

Service cost 578 

Benefit payments (64) 

Expected liability as at 31 March 2016 15,672 

Basis Change (31) 

Medical inflation 220 

Membership changes (539) 

Marital status of continuation member 355 

Liability as at 31 March 2016 15,677 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42 of 61 
Toyota Financial Services (South Africa) Limited  

  



TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

19. Share capital and share premium 

     2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 

Share capital   

   
Authorised shares:   
6 000 ordinary shares of R1 each (6) (6) 

   
Issued :   
4 695 ordinary shares of R1 each (5) (5) 

 
 
 
 
Share premium 

  

   
200 shares at a premium of R149 999 (30,000) (30,000) 
4200 shares at a premium of R99 999 (419,995) (419,995) 
195 shares at a  premium of R999 999 (195,000) (195,000) 
   
   
 (644,995) (644,995) 

 

There was no change to the issued share capital of the Company during the year and the authorised but 
Unissued Shares are under the control of the existing Shareholders. The share premium account is regarded 
as permanent capital of the Company and is not available for distribution. 

 

20. Financial risk management 

20.1 Credit risk 

The Company is exposed to significant credit risks, which it manages by authorising credit limits based on 
client profiles and monitoring customer arrears and payment history. Credit risk arises from exposures to 
wholesale and retail customer contracts, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions as well 
as cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks and financial 
institutions. The carrying amount of financial assets in the annual financial statements is recorded net of 
impairment losses. 

 

20.1.1. Credit risk measurement  

(a)  Treasury related credit risk 

Counterparty risk arises from the investment of surplus funds and from the use of derivative instruments.  

The Company only transacts with entities that are rated the equivalent of investment grade and above and 
obtains sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.  
Information regarding the credit rating of the counterparty is supplied by independent rating agencies. The 
Company's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate 
value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. 
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

20. Financial risk management (continued) 

 

   2016 2015 
Counterparty Derivative 

Instrument 
Nominal 
Amount 

R'000 

Carrying 
Amount 

R'000 

Carrying 
Amount 

R'000 
     
Rand Merchant Bank, a 
division of FirstRand Bank 
Limited 

Interest Rate Swap 260,000  (1,071) 

Rand Merchant Bank, a 
division of FirstRand Bank 
Limited 

 
Interest Rate Swap 

  
200,000 

 
(6,719) 

 
(5,306) 

Rand Merchant Bank, a 
division of FirstRand Bank 
Limited 

 
Interest Rate Swap 

 
200,000 

 
(6,364) 

 
(5,158) 

 

As at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015 no individual counterparty exposures exceeded limits as set out in 
the company’s exposure management practices. No individual exposure is considered significant in the 
ordinary course of business. 

 

(b)  Loans and receivables 

(b1) Performance of loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables consist of a large number of customers. Credit scoring is performed based on publicly 
available information and historical information from past transactions. Applications for new leases or loans 
must be approved based on this internal credit scoring process. The accuracy of this process is monitored 
and reviewed. 

No significant concentration of risk exists for retail or wholesale products based on the factors above and the 
robust credit monitoring performed.  

Collateral is held by the Company, and impairment has been provided against the gross amount. The 
collateral equals the value of the depreciating vehicle through the life of the deal. The market value of the 
collateral is established at repossession. 

 

2016 
 
Loans and receivables 

Retail Leases Retail Finance Wholesale Total 
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

     
Performing 449,658 25,374,848 2,601,953 28,426,459 
Past due but not specifically impaired 263,196 1,226,304 25,128 1,514,628 
Specifically impaired 12,319 632,868 - 645,187 
     

    
Total loans and receivables 725,173 27,234,020 2,627,081 30,586,274 
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

20. Financial risk management (continued) 

20.1.1. Credit risk measurement (continued) 

(b)  Loans and receivables (continued) 

 

2015 
 
Loans and receivables 

Retail Leases Retail Finance Wholesale Total 
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

     
Performing 556,011 24,332,992 2,264,089 27,153,092 
Past due but not specifically impaired 6,045 402,967 31,252 440,264 
Specifically impaired 10,843 344,235 - 355,078 
     

    
Total loans and receivables 572,899 25,080,194 2,295,341 27,948,434 

 

(b2) Loans and receivables past due (but not specifically impaired) 

Loans and receivables that are less than 90 days past due are not considered specifically impaired, unless 
other information is available to indicate the contrary. 

Gross amount of loans and receivables by class to customers that were past due but not impaired were as 
follows: 

 

2016 
 
Loans and receivables 

Retail Leases Retail Finance Wholesale Total 
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

     
Past due up to 30 days 260,898 940,986 - 1,201,884 
Past due 31 - 90 days 2,298 285,318 - 287,616 
Wholesale under review - - 25,128  25,128 
 

    
Total loans and receivables past due 263,196 1,226,304 25,128 1,514,628 

 

 

2015 
 
Loans and receivables 

Retail Leases Retail Finance Wholesale Total 
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

     
Past due up to 30 days 4,370 294,458 - 298,828 
Past due 31 - 90 days 1,675 108,509 - 110,184 
Wholesale under review - - 31,252 31,252 

    
 6,045 402,967 31,252 440,264 
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

20. Financial risk management (continued) 

20.1.1. Credit risk measurement (continued) 

(b)  Loans and receivables (continued) 

(b3) Loans and receivables individually impaired 

The value of individually impaired loans and receivables, before taking into consideration the cash flows from 
collateral held and the breakdown of the gross amount by class is as follows: 

 

2016 
 
Loans and receivables 

Retail Leases Retail Finance Wholesale Total 
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

     

Individually impaired 12,319 632,868 - 645,187 

 

2015 
 
Loans and receivables 

Retail Leases Retail Finance Wholesale Total 
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

     
Individually impaired 10,843 344,235 - 355,078 

 
 
20.2 Market risk 
 

20.2.1 Market risk management strategies 

(a) Interest rate risk 

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk associated with fluctuations in the market rates as a result of 
lending and borrowing activities. This is managed through the management and monitoring of assets and 
liabilities, which are sensitive to interest rate fluctuations.  The capital risk management is managed by a risk 
committee which comprises of the heads of Risk, Corporate Governance and Finance and Treasury. 

The Company issues a mixture of fixed and floating interest rate, short and long-term debt, which is used to 
fund a mixture of fixed and floating interest rate assets. The Company manages interest rate risk on a portfolio 
basis by maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings and by the use of interest rate 
swap contracts. 

The table below summarises the exposure to interest rate risk through grouping assets and liabilities into 
repricing categories, determined to be the earlier of contractual re-pricing date or maturity. 
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

20. Financial risk management (continued) 

20.2.1 Market risk management strategies (continued) 

 

2016 
Up to 1 
Month  
R'000 

1 to 3 
months 

R'000 

4 to 12 
months 

R'000 

Beyond 
12 

months 
R'000 

Non interest 
sensitive 

items 
R'000 

Total  
R'000 

Assets             
              
Loans and receivables 12,972,810 - - -  17,196,516  30,169,326 
Trade and other 
 receivables - - - - 19,951  19,951  

Cash and bank balances 210,243 - - - - 210,243 

              
Liabilities             
              
Derivative financial instru-
ments 13,083 - - - - 13,083 

Borrowings - 13,958,440 - - 12,200,000 26,158,440 
Trade and other payables - - - - 1,594,528 1,594,528 
Bank overdraft 83,310 - - - - 83,310 
Employee benefits liability - - - - 15,677 15,677  
 
       

2015 
Up to 1 
Month  
R'000 

1 to 3 
months 

R'000 

4 to 12 
months 

R'000 

Beyond 
12 

months 
R'000 

Non interest 
sensitive 

items 
R'000 

Total 
R'000 

             
Assets             
              
Loans and receivables 10,244,177 - - - 17,397,987 27,642,164 
Trade and other  
receivables - - - - 36,518 36,518 

Cash and bank balances 28,117 - - - - 28,117 

             
Liabilities             
              
Borrowings - 12,082,256 - - 11,655,000 23,737,256 
Derivative financial instru-
ments 11,535 - - - - 11,535  

Bank overdraft 120,237 - - - - 120,237 
Employee benefits liability - - - - 14,038 14,038  
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
20. Financial risk management (continued) 

20.2.1 Market risk management strategies (continued) 

(b) Currency risk 

Where the Company issues foreign currency debt or borrows from banks in foreign currencies, the Company 
uses cross currency swaps to hedge the foreign currency exposure back into Rand. The Company is not 
exposed to currency risk at 31 March 2016, as well as during 31 March 2015 as no foreign-denominated 
borrowings existed. 

 

20.3 Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its 
financial liabilities when they fall due. The management of liquidity is primarily carried out in accordance with 
practices and limits set by the Toyota Financial Services Corporation (TFSC) global policy. 

The Company manages liquidity risk by employing a number of funding strategies and utilising monitoring 
tools. Diversification of funding sources via short-term and long-term capital markets, and committed and 
uncommitted bank facilities are used to manage borrowing capacity. Capital market activity is further 
managed by the use of a Guarantee from Toyota Motor Finance Netherlands BV, under a Credit Support 
Agreement in place with Toyota Motor Corporation. 

Liquidity requirements are managed by the use of both short and long-term cash flow forecasts and 
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 

The following table details the expected maturity of financial assets. The analysis is based on undiscounted 
cash flows receivable. 

 

2016 
 

Due within 1 
year 

Due between 1 
and 5 years 

Due after 5 
years 

R'000 R'000 R'000 
    
Trade and other receivables 19,951 - - 
Cash and bank balances  210,243 - - 
Loans and receivables 8,919,259 19,640,358  1,609,709 
    
 
Total financial assets 9,149,453 19,640,358 

        
1,609,709 
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
20. Financial risk management (continued) 

20.2.1 Market risk management strategies (continued) 

20.3 Liquidity risk (continued) 

 

2015 
 

Due within 1 
year 

Due between 1 
and 5 years 

Due after 5 
years 

R'000 R'000 R'000 
    
Trade and other receivables 36,518 - - 
Cash and bank balances  28,117 - - 
Loans and receivables 8,053,725 19,588,439         - 
    
    
Total financial assets 8,118,360 19,588,439                  -    

 

The following table details the expected maturity of non-derivative financial liabilities. The analysis is based on 
undiscounted cash flows payable. 

 

2016 
 

Due within 1 
year 

Due between 1 
and 5 years 

Due after 5 
years 

R'000 R'000 R'000 
    
Trade and other payables 1,470,527 - - 
Deferred initiation fees 28,321 95,679  
Bank overdraft 83,310 - - 
Borrowings 6,666,440 19,492,000         - 
    
    
Total debt 8,248,598 19,587,679                  -    

 
The following table details the expected maturity of derivative financial instruments. The analysis is based on 
the undiscounted cash flows. When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has 
been determined by reference to the projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves existing at the 
reporting date. 
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
20. Financial risk management (continued) 

20.2.1 Market risk management strategies (continued) 

 

2016 Due within 1 
year 

Due between 1 
and 5 years 

Due after 5 
years 

R'000 R'000 R'000 
Net settled:    
– Interest derivatives receivable  4,416 4,037 - 
    
Total derivatives 4,416  4,037  - 

    
Total  8,253,014 19,591,716 - 

 
2015 
 

Due within 1 
year 

Due between 1 
and 5 years 

Due after 5 
years 

R'000 R'000 R'000 
    
Trade and other payables  1,461,553 - - 
Deferred initiation fees 26,365 89,567  
Bank overdraft 120,237 - - 
Borrowings 7,837,256 15,900,000         - 
    
    
Total debt 9,445,411 15,989,567                  -    

 
 
 
 
2015 Due within 1 

year 
Due between 1 

and 5 years 
Due after 5 

years 
R'000 R'000 R'000 

Net settled:    
– Interest derivatives receivable        1,447 (2,359) - 
    
Total derivatives       1,447 (2,359) - 

    
Total  9,446,858       15,987,208 - 

 

 

The valuation of interest rate swaps as provided by Rand Merchant Bank and Deutsche Bank AG (“the 
counterparties”) reflects the net present value of all cash flows under the swap, discounted using discount 
factors determined from the counterparties mid official closing swap curve for the applicable currency at a 
specified date.  Cash flows of the fixed rate leg are as stipulated in the relevant interest rate swap agreement, 
whilst cash flows of the floating rate leg are projected from the same swap curve used to calculate discount 
factors and adjusted for any additional floating rate margin stipulated in the interest rate swap agreement. 
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(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
20. Financial risk management (continued) 

20.4 Sensitivity Analysis 

The sensitivity analysis is prepared based on financial instruments that are recognised at the end of the 
reporting period.  This is the case even where those exposures did not exist for the entire period or where the 
exposure changed materially during the period. The sensitivity that is applied is the amount that could 
reasonably be expected to occur, and has been determined as 100 basis points up and down. 

Interest rate risk 
Effect on Profit before tax 

of 1% increase in rates 
Total Carrying value of 

asset class 

 
R'000 R'000 

2016 
  Assets 
  Loans and receivables             129,728        30,169,326  

Trade and other receivables                     -                19,951  
Cash and bank balances                     -                210,243  

   Liabilities 
  Borrowings             137,584       26,158,440  

Trade and other payables                     -            1,470,527  
Deferred initiation fees - 124,000 
Derivative financial instruments                   131              13,083  
Bank overdraft                833            83,310  
Net Exposure            (8,820)  2,550,160 

   

Interest rate risk 
Effect on Profit before tax 

of 1% increase in rates  
Total Carrying value of 

asset class 

 
R'000 R'000 

2015 
  Assets 
  Loans and receivables             116,748        27,642,165  

Derivative financial instruments                   115              11,535  
Trade and other receivables                     -                36,518  
Cash and bank balances                     -                28,117  

   Liabilities 
  Borrowings             237,373        23,737,256  

Trade and other payables                      -            1,461,553  
Deferred initiation fees - 115,932 
Bank overdraft                1,202            120,237  
Net Exposure            (121,712)  2,283,357 

 

The effect of a 1% change in interest rates is shown above. As the Company has no control over rate 
movements, it cannot predict the effect of future rate movements if any. 
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
20. Financial risk management (continued) 

20.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 

The fair value risk is managed by obtaining fair values from quoted market prices and discounted cash flow 
models. At 31 March 2016 the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables 
and trade and other payables approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturities of these assets 
and liabilities.  

The following table sets out the carrying value and fair value of those financial assets and liabilities not 
presented on the statement of financial position at fair value.  

(a) Fair value estimation 

The book value of short-term financial assets and liabilities approximates the fair value due to the short 
maturities of these instruments. 

The estimated fair value of loans and receivables is based on expected future cash flows discounted at 
current market rates. The fair value estimates will depend on customer prepayments, credit losses and 
expected future interest rates.  

The fair value of borrowings is based on current market prices where available. Where active market prices 
are not available, the fair value of fixed interest borrowings is based on future cash flows discounted at the 
current rate for similar debt or assets with the same remaining maturities.   

(b) Carrying amounts and fair value of financial instruments 

The carrying value of loans and receivables is shown net of impairment. 

 

 2016 2015 
Carrying 

Value 
Fair value Carrying 

Value 
Fair value 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 
Financial assets  
Loans and receivables at amortised cost     
- Retail leases 718,057 712,313 564,579 561,649 
- Retail finance 26,831,568 26,616,915 24,789,773 24,661,114 
- Wholesale loans 2,619,701 2,619,701 2,287,812 2,287,812 
     
     
 30,169,326 29,948,929 27,642,164 27,510,575 
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
20. Financial risk management (continued) 

20.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 

(b) Carrying amounts and fair value of financial instruments (continued) 

 

 2016 2015 
Carrying 

Value 
Fair 

 Value 
Carrying 

Value 
Fair value 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 
Financial liabilities  
Borrowings at amortised cost     
- Borrowings 21,908,440 22,163,251 19,672,256 19,973,381 
- Commercial paper 800,000 800,000 1,050,000 1,050,000 
- Domestic medium term note 3,450,000 3,450,000 3,060,000 3,060,000 
     
     
 26,158,440 26,413,251 23,782,256 24,083,381 

 

The fair values of the domestic medium term note and commercial paper are provided by the Bond Exchange 
of South Africa where the notes are listed. 

 

20.5 Fair value measurements recognised in statement of financial position 

 

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial 
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable. 

The fair values of the financial instruments are considered on a recurring basis. 

 

• Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilities. 

• Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included in 
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. 
derived from prices).  

The key assumptions relate to the future cash flows which are projected using a forward curve and 
then discounted using a market related discount curve over the contractual period. The reset date of 
each swap is determined in terms of legal documents pertaining to the swap. The key inputs are the 
market interest rates and the forward curves. 

• Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for 
the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).  

The carrying amount is arrived at after taking into account any impairment on the loans and 
receivables balance. The impairment amount is determined using retail and corporate impairment 
models that have been developed and approved by management. The key assumptions used in the 
determination of impairments include probability of default by the client and loss given default by the 
client 
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
20. Financial risk management (continued) 

20.5 Fair value measurements recognised in statement of financial position (continued) 

 

2016 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

Financial liabilities 
    

     
     
Derivative financial instruments - 13,083 - 13,083 

 
- 13,083 - 13,083 

 

20.5.1 Fair value disclosures 

 

 

2016 2015 

R'000 R'000 

Included in level 2   
Derivative liabilities 13,083 11,535  

 
13,083 11,535  

 

There were no transfers between any levels during the period. 
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(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
20. Financial risk management (continued) 

20.6 Categorisation of assets and liabilities 

 

Statement of financial position 

 

2016 

Loans, 
cash and 

receivables 

Financial 
assets and 
liabilities: 
Fair value 

through 
Profit and 

loss 

Financial 
liabilities 
carried at 
amortised 

costs 

Non-
financial 

liabilities or 
non-

financial 
assets Total 

Property, plant and equipment             -                     -                     -    98,279   98,279  
Loans and receivables  30,169,326                   -                     -                     -    30,169,326  
Trade and other receivables      19,951                   -                     -                     -        19,951  
Cash and bank balances     210,243                   -                     -                     -       210,243  
Deferred tax asset                   -                     -                     -         104,729       104,729  
Current tax asset                   -                     -                     -       25,771     25,771  
  

30,399,520                   -                     -       228,779  30,628,299  
 

      
     Long Term borrowings                   -                     -    26,158,440                   -    26,158,440 

Employee benefits liability                   -                     -                     -    15,677  15,677  
Derivative financial instru-
ments                   -    13,083                   -                     -    13,083 
Trade and other payables and 
deferred initiation fees                  -                     -    1,594,527                   -    1,594,527  
Bank overdraft                   -                     -    83,310                   -    83,310  
 

                 -    
          

13,083 
    

27,836,277  
          

15,677 
    

27,865,037  
 

     Total equity attributable to 
shareholders  

    

      
2,763,262  

 
     Total equity and liabilities  

    

    
30,628,299 
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
20. Financial risk management (continued) 

20.6 Categorisation of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 

 
      2015 Loans and 

receivables 
Financial 

assets and 
liabilities: 
Fair value 

through 
Profit and 

loss 

Financial 
liabilities 
carried at 
amortised 

costs 

Non-
financial 

liabilities or 
non-

financial 
assets 

Total 

Property, plant and equipment             -                     -                     -    88,775   88,775  
Loans and receivables  27,642,164                   -                     -                     -    27,642,164  
Trade and other receivables      36,518                   -                     -                     -        36,518  
Cash and bank balances     28,117                   -                     -                     -        28,117  
Deferred tax asset                   -                     -                     -         89,869     89,869  
Current tax asset                   -                     -                     -       27,275      27,275  
  

27,706,799                   -                     -       205,919  27,912,718  
 

      
     Long Term borrowings                   -                     -    23,737,256                   -    23,737,256  

Employee benefits liability                   -                     -                     -    14,038  14,038  
Derivative financial instru-
ments                   -    11,535                   -                     -    11,535  
Trade and other payables and 
deferred initiation fees                  -                     -    1,577,485                   -    1,577,485  
Bank overdraft                   -                     -    120,237                   -    120,237  
 

                 -    
          

11,535  
    

25,434,978  
          

14,038  
    

25,460,551  
 

     Total equity attributable to 
shareholders  

    

      
2,452,167  

 
     Total equity and liabilities  

    

    
27,912,718  

 
 

     21. Related party transactions 

The shareholders of the Company are WesInvest Holdings Proprietary Limited, Toyota South Africa Motors 
(Proprietary) Limited and Toyota Financial Services (UK) PLC. Related party relationships exist between the 
shareholders.  

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 

WesBank (a division of FirstRand Bank Limited)   
 
Management fees and other service related fees 225,063 196,658 
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

21. Related party transactions (continued) 

 
The management fee liability as at 31 March 2016 is R19 million  (2015: R17 million) 
 
Toyota South Africa Motors Proprietary Limited   
   
Dealer Funding Solutions (Vehicles purchased) 28,046,307 28,503,861 
Salaries and Rental Expenses 15,104 

 
14,120 

 
 28,061,411 28,517,981 
   

The manufacturer liability as at 31 March 2015 is R1,176 million (2014: R938 million). 
 
Loans from related parties 
 
FirstRand Bank Limited 558,440 902,256 
TMFNL 700,000 200,000 
iNkotha - 70,000 
Indwa 400,000 

 
900,000 

 
 1,658,440 2,072,256 

 
All related party transactions and balances have been recorded and are reflected at fair value and have  
been concluded at arm lengths at market related values. 
 
The following remuneration was paid to Directors and key management personnel: 

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 
   

Salaries and other benefits    
 
Directors 9,618 8,536 
 
Prescribed Officers 8,366 7,386 
   
Number of directors for the period 4 4 
   
Number of Prescribed Officers for the period 5 4 
   
Loans and advances to directors and Prescribed Officers  

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 

 
Loans and advances outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,631 2,631 
Loans advanced during the year 1,300 2,588 
Interest charged during the year 106 60 
Loan repayments during the year (1,884) (3,648) 
Loans outstanding at the end of the year 1,153 1,631 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

22. Events after the reporting period 

The Company issued commercial paper and a bond through Nedbank Limited on 28 April 2016 and 27 May 
2016 respectively, the instruments had nominal values of R400 million and R350 million respectively. No other 
material transactions have occurred. 

H Watanabe was appointed as Director on 01 April 2016. 

 
23. Contingent assets and liabilities 

 

Litigations and Claims 

There is currently no pending or imminent litigation against Toyota Financial Services (South Africa) Limited. 

 

24. Cash utilised by operations 

     2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 

   

Profit before taxation 591,546 586,794 
Interest and similar income (3,405,497) (3,042,118) 
Interest and similar expense 1,863,412 1,630,792 
Impairment 110,679 58,258 
Depreciation 
Profit on disposal of assets 

23,648 
(2,195) 

25,356 
(959) 

   
 (818,407) (741,876) 
   
Working capital changes:   
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables and deferred 
initiation fees 

(31,052) 242,018 

   
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade and other receivables 16,567 (155) 
   
   
 (832,892) (508,965) 
   

25. Deferred initiation fees 

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 

   

Due within 1 year (28,321) (26,365) 
Due in over 1 year (95,679) (89,587) 
   

   
Deferred initiation fees (124,000) (115,932) 
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

26. Operating lease rentals  

 2016 2015 
 R'000 R'000 
   
Building 3,230 3,411 
Vehicles  164 53 
Equipment 783 393 
   
 4,177 3,857 

Minimum Lease Payments 

 2016 2015 
Building Equipment Building Equipment 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 
     
- Due in 1 year 2,799 113 2,566 103 
- Due in 2 - 5 year 11,195 453 10,263 413 
     
 13,994 566 12,829 516 

 

Lease payments vary between month to month rentals and operating lease agreements that are entered into 
on a short term and long term basis. All figures included in the minimum lease payments schedule above, are 
those that the Company has an obligation to pay in the periods listed. 
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

27. Directors emoluments  

 

Directors’ and Prescribed officers’ emoluments 2016 (R’000) 

 Cash 
Package 

Retirement 
Contr. 

Performance 
related 

Share 
Options 

Housing Other1 Total 

Directors        

M.G Burger 2,153 250 1,689 - - 434 4,526 

S.S Sugimori 804 - 612 - 516 2,403 4,335 

A.W Hedding 330 - - - - - 330 

N.D.B Orleyn 233 - - - - - 233 

C.W.N Molope 193 - - - - - 193 

Subtotal Directors 3,713 250 2,301 - 516 2,837 9,617 

Prescribed Officers        

D Leach 1,789 206 494 - - 92 2,581 

T Manaka 1,479 170 434 - - 62 2,145 

K Pillay 106 10 - - - 5 121 

K Van Zyl 1,557 151 389 - - 55 2,152 

N Daya 929 85 12 - - - 1,026 

Subtotal Prescribed 
Officers  5,860 622 1,329 

- - 
214 8,025 

Total 9,573 872 3,630 - 516 3,051 17,642 

 

Notes 
All executive directors and prescribed officers have a notice period of one month.  
A prescribed officer is a person who exercises general executive control over management of the whole or a 
significant portion of the business and activities of Toyota Financial Services (South Africa) Limited. 
1 Other allowances include expat allowances, travel and medical. 
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TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES (SOUTH AFRICA) LIMITED 
(Registration number: 1982/010082/06) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – for the year ended 31 March 2016 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

27. Directors emoluments (continued)  

 

Directors’ and Prescribed officers’ emoluments 2015 (R’000) 

 Cash 
Package 

Retirement 
Contr. 

Performance 
related 

Share 
Options 

Housing Other1 Total 

Directors        

M.G. Burger 1,805 208 1,621 241 - 405 4,280 

S.S Sugimori 909 - 561 - 443 2,030 3,943 

A.W Hedding 313 - - - - - 313 

N.D.B Orleyn 235 - - - - - 235 

C.W.N Molope 220 - - - - - 220 

Subtotal Directors 3,482 208 2,182 241 443 2,435 8,991 

Prescribed Officers        

D Leach 1,520 175 507 - - 86 2,288 

T Manaka 1,357 161 468 - - 66 2,052 

K Pillay 1,008 95 192 - - 29 1,324 

K Van Zyl 1,098 105 402 - - 51 1,656 

Subtotal 
Prescribed Officers 4,983 536 1,569 - - 232 7,320 

Total 8,465 744 3,751 241 443 2,667 16,311 

 

Notes 
All executive directors and prescribed officers have a notice period of one month.  
A prescribed officer is a person who exercises general executive control over management of the whole or a 
significant portion of the business and activities of Toyota Financial Services (South Africa) Limited. 
1 Other allowances include expat allowances, travel and medical. 
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